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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as the
“Company”) presents this report together with the Company's interim financial statements for the period from
January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025, which were reviewed by independent auditors.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company ("Company") was established and operates under Securities Business
Registration License No.119/GP-UBCK issued by the State Securities Commission dated November 23, 2015 on
the basis of merging Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (Securities Business Registration License
No.13/UBCK-GP issued on October 21, 2003) and A Au Securities Joint Stock Company (Securities Business
Registration License No.75/UBCK-GP issued on December 21, 2007).

The Company's latest securities business license is the amended Securities Company Establishment and
Operation License No.74/GPDC-UBCK issued by the State Securities Commission dated October 14, 2024,
which approves the change of the legal representative.
Principal activities of the Company during the year are:

- Brokerage services;

- Proprietary trading;

- Securities investment advisory service;

- Underwriting for securities issues.

The Company’s headoffice is located at: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward, Hai Phong City.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and to the date of this report include:

- Mr Dao Le Huy Chairman (Appointed on June 26, 2025)
- Ms Ngo Thi Song Ngan Member (Appointed on June 26, 2025)
- Mr. Nguyen Tuan Anh Member (Appointed on June 26, 2025)
. Mr. Ninh Le Son Hai Chairman (Resigned on June 26, 2025)
- Mr. Chu Viet Ha Member (Resigned on June 26, 2025)

- Ms. Ly Thi Thu Ha Member (Resigned on June 26, 2025)

- Mr. Le Ngoc Hai Member (Resigned on June 26, 2025)

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Mai Member (Resigned on June 26, 2025)

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

Members of the Board of Management during the year and to the date of this report include:

- Mr. Ninh Le Son Hai Acting General Director (Resignation of Deputy General Director from
June 26, 2025 and Appointment of Acting General Director from June
26, 2025)

- Ms. Nguyen Thi Nguyet General Director (Resigned on June 26, 2025)

- Ms. Ngo Thi Song Ngan Deputy General Director (Appointed on May 28, 2025)

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the period and up to June 26, 2025 is Mr. Ninh Le Son Hai -
Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors. From June 27, 2025 and up to the date of this report, the legal
representative of the Company is Mr. Dao Le Huy - Title: Chairman of the Board of Directors according to the
third Amendment Business Registration Certificate issued by the Department of Finance of Hai Phong City on
June 27, 2025.



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr. Ninh Le Son Hai - Acting General Director is authorized by Mr. Dao Le Huy to sign the accompanying
Interim Financial Statements for the fiscal period from January 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025 under Power of
Attorney No. 111/VBUQ-HAC of the Chairman of the Board of Directors dated July 2, 2025.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Members of the Board of Supervisors during the period and up to the date of this report include:

- Mr. Pham Minh Hieu Head of Board of Supervisors (Resigned on June 26, 2025)
- Mr Nguyen Trung Kien Member (Resigned on June 26, 2025)
- Mr Le Tuan Member (Resigned on June 26, 2025)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Management of the Company affirms that there are no events occurring after June 30, 2025 up to
the date of this report, that require adjustments or disclosures in the interim Financial Statements

AUDITORS

BDO Audit Services Company Limited has reviewed the Company's interim financial statements for the fiscal
period from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE INTERIM FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board of Management of the Company is responsible for preparation and presentation of interim financial
statements, which give a true and fair view of the Company’s interim financial position as at June 30, 2025 as
well as its interim operations results and its interim cash flow and its interim changes in owners’ equity for the
year period from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025 and confirm that there are no unusual issues that could affect
the Company's ability to continue in business.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Management is required to
- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, material misstatements (if any) that
have been disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

- Prepare financial statements on going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the interim financial position of the Company and to ensure that the
accompanying interim financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the accounting
regime applicable to securities companies as stipulated in Circular No.210/2014/TT-BTC dated December 30,
2014, issued by the Ministry of Finance on accounting guidelines for securities companies, Circular
No0.334/2016/TT-BTC dated December 27, 2016, issued by the Ministry of Finance on amendments,
supplements, and replacement of Appendix 02 and 04 of Circular 210/2014/TT-BTC, and statutory requirements
relevant to the preparation and presentation of interim financial statements. The Board of Management is also
responsible for safeguarding the Company’s assets and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Board of Management of the Company confirms that the Company has complied with the above
requirements in preparing and presenting the accompanying interim financial statements.

The Board of Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompany interim financial statements give
a true and fair view of the Company’s interim financial position as at June 30, 2025, its interim operations
results, its interim cash flow and its interim changes in owners’ equity for the period then ended, in accordance
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT (Continued)

with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, the accounting regime applicable to securities companies as
stipulated in Circular No.210/2014/TT-BTC dated December 30, 2014, issued by the Ministry of Finance on
accounting guidelines for securities companies, Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC dated December 27, 2016,
issued by the Ministry of Finance on amendments, supplements, and replacement of Appendix 02 and 04 of
Circular 210/2014/TT-BTC, and statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of interim
financial statements.

Hai Phong, July 28, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Management
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Tel.:+84 (0) 24 37833911 20" Floor, Icon 4 Tower
Fax: +84 (0) 24 37833914 243A De La Thanh Street
Dong Da District, Hanoi,

www.bdo.vn Vietnam

No: BC/BD0/2025.55k Hanoi, July 28, 2025

REPORT ON REVIEW

of interim financial statements of Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company
Jor the period from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025.

To: SHAREHOLDERS, BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF MANAGEMENT
HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company,
as prepared on July 28, 2025 and set out from page 07 to 48, including the interim statement of financial position
as at June 30, 2025, the interim statement of income, the interim cash flow statement, the interim statement of
changes in equity for the period from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025 and the notes thereto.

Management’s responsibility

The Company’s Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the interim financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System
applicable to securities companies in accordance with Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC dated December 30, 2014
issued by the Ministry of Finance on Accounting Guidance applicable to Securities Companies, Circular No.
334/2016/TT-BTC dated December 27, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Finance on amending, supplementing and
replacing Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210/2014/TT-BTC and legal regulations related to the
preparation and presentation of interim financial statements, and for such internal control as the Management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of interim financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the interim financial statements based on our review. We
conducted the review in accordance with Vietnamese Standard on Review Engagements No.2410 — Review on
Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity.

A review of interim financial information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially
less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing and consequently does
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

BDO Audit Services Co., Ltd, a limited liability company incorporated in Vietnam, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee, and forms
part of the International BDO network of independent member firms. BDO is the brand name for the BDO International network and for each of the BDO member firms.
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IBDO

Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the accompanying interim
financial statements do not give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the interim financial position of Hai
Phong Securities Joint Stock Company as at June 30, 2025, and of the interim results of its operations, its interim cash
flows and its interim changes in owner’s equity for the fiscal period from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025 in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System applicable to
securities companies as prescribed in Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC dated December 30, 2014 issued by the
Ministry of Finance on Accounting Guidance applicable to Securities Companies, Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC
dated December 27, 2016 issued by the Ministry of Finance on amending, supplementing and replacing Appendix 02
and Appendix 04 of Circular 210/2014/TT-BTC and legal regulations related to the preparation and presentation of
interim financial statements.

BDO AUDIT SERVICE COMPANY LIMITTED

Deputy Director
Certificate of Audit Practitioner Registration
No: 1906-2023-038-1




HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward,

B0la - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements

Hai Phong City from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025
INTERIM BALANCE SHEET
As at June 30, 2025
Unit: VND
ASSETS CODE NOTE Closing balance Opening balance
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 326,611,450,032 266,334,568,918
I. Financial assets 110 325,139,303,478 264,752,804,514
1. Cash and cash equivalents 111 A.6.1 91,563,246,411 69,082,052,156
1.1 Cash 111.1 91,563,246,411 49,082,052,156
1.2 Cash equivalents 111.2 - 20,000,000,000
2. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss 112 A.6.3.1 108,031,696,270 41,056,900,600
(FVTPL)
3. Held-to-maturity investment (HTM) 113 - -
4. Loans 114 A.6.33 65,384,674,099 100,144,996,277
5. Available-for-sale financial assets (AFS) 115 A.6.3.2 - 54,000,000,000
6. Provision for impairment of financial assets and 116 (1.250,675.845) (1.436.398.463)
mortgage assets
7. Receivables 117  A.64.1 2,406,249,778 2,838,831,056
7.1. Receivable from disposal of financial assets 7.1 - -
' 7.2. Re.ceivables and ac.cruals from dividend and 1172 2.406.249,778 838,831,056
interest income of financial assets
7.2.1 Dividends and interest income due to be received 117.3 1,732,720,382 1,732,720,382
In which: Dou{)tful debts on dividends and interest due 117.3.1 1.732.720,382 1.732.720.382
but not yet received
7.2.2 Accruals for undue dividend and interest income 17 4 673,529,396 1,106,110,674
8. Advances to suppliers 118 60,433,779,569 432,466,089
Co9n.1 pl:z?:;vables from services provided by securities {19 284,432,568 315,295,429
10. Intra-company receivables 120 - S
11. Receivable for securities trading errors 121 = B
12. Other receivables 122 A.6.4.2 18,621,010 51,381,752
13. Provision for impairment of receivables 129 (1,732,720,382) (1,732,720,382)
I1. Other current assets 130 1,472,146,554 1,581,764,404
1. Advances 131 A.6.8 54,758,522 45,000,000
2. Office equipment, tools and supplies 132 - -
3. Current prepaid expenses 133 A.6.5 517,900,473 564,642,504
4. Short-term deposits, collaterals and pledges 134 A.6.9 183,875,196 196,875,196
5. Value-added tax deductible 135 103,197,811 162,832,152
6. Tax and other receivables from the State 136 612,414,552 612,414,552
7. Other current assets 137 - e
8. Purchase and resale of Government bonds 138 - -
9. Provision for impairment of other current assets 139 - =
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 10,928,124,916 11,475,196,267
I. Non-current financial assets 210 - -
1. Non-current receivables 211 - -
2. Long-term investments 212 B =
2.1 Held-to-maturity investment 212.1 - -
2.2 Investment in subsidiaries 212.2 - -
2.3 Investment in joint ventures, associates 212.3 = -
2.4 Other long-term investments 212.4 = -
3. Provision for impairment of long-term financial assets 213 - -
"

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Hai Phong City

B01a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

INTERIM BALANCE SHEET
As at June 30, 2025

(Continued)
ASSETS

II. Fixed assets
1. Tangible fixed assets
- Historical cost
- Accumulated depreciation
- Valuation of tangible fixed assets at fair value
2. Finance leased assets
- Historical cost
- Accumulated depreciation
- Valuation of finance leased assets at fair value
3. Intangible fixed assets
- Historical cost
- Accumulated amortization
- Valuation of intangible fixed assets at fair value
II1. Investment properties
- Historical cost
- Accumulated depreciation
- Valuation of investment properties at fair value
IV. Construction in progress
V. Other non-current assets
1. Long-term deposits, collaterals and pledges
2. Non-current prepaid expenses
3. Deferred income tax assets
4. Payment for Settlement Assistance Fund
5. Other non-current assets

VI. Provision for impairment of non-current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

RESOURCES
C. LIABILITIES
I. Current liabilities
1. Short-term loans and finance lease liabilities
1.1. Loans
1.2. Finance lease liabilities
2. Financial asset loan
. Short-term Convertible Bond - Debt Component
. Short-term bond issued

. Settlement assistance fund loans

. Payables for financial asset transaction errors

3
4
5
6. Payable for securities trading activities
7
8. Trade payables

9

. Advances from customers

10. Taxes and other payables to the State

CODE NOTE

220
221
222
223a
223b
224
225
226a
226b
227
228
229a
229b
230
231
232a
232
240
250
251
252
253
254
255
260

270

300
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322

A.6.6

A.6.7

A.6.9
A.6.5

A.6.10

A6.11

Closing balance

Opening balance

3,623,041,701
2,224,352,185
13,370,120,997
(11,145,768,812)

1,398,689,516
19,500,092,880
(18,101,403,364)

7,305,083,215
580,786,200
1,155,594,111

3,922,136,181
2,429,696,665
13,370,120,997
(10,940,424,332)

1,492,439,516
19,500,092,880
(18,007,653,364)

7,553,060,086
552,786,200
1,969,394,025

5,568,702,904 5,030,879,861
337,539,574,948 277,809,765,185
28,815,902,174 12,118,651,935
28,815,902,174 12,118,651,935
19,550,000,000 -
19,550,000,000 -
417,500,000 -
530,381,517 1,143,119,322

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Hai Phong City

B0la - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

INTERIM BALANCE SHEET
As at June 30, 2025

(Continued)

RESOURCES CODE NOTE Closing balance Opening balance

11. Payables to employees 323 996,180,398 1,792,885,715
12. Employee benefits 324 124,316,314 84,497,512
13. Accrued expenses 325 A.6.12 151,706,578 766,740,000
14. Intra-company payables 326 = -
15. Unearned revenue 327 = =
16. Deposits and collaterals received 328 = =
17. Other payables 329 A.6.13 7,038,025,100 8,323,617,119
18. Provision for payables 330 - -
19. Bonus and welfare funds 331 7,792,267 7,792,267
20. Purchase and resale of Government bonds 332 - -
I1. Non-current liabilities = =
1. Long-term loans and finance lease liabilities 341 - -
1.1. Long-term loans 342 s -
1.2. Long-term finance lease liabilities 343 - .
2. Long-term financial asset loan 344 = -
3. Long-term Convertible Bond - Debt Component 345 = -

4. Long-term bond issued 346 - -

D. OWNERS' EQUITY 400 308,723,672,774 265,691,113,250
I. Owners' equity 410 308,723,672,774 265,691,113,250
1. Share capital 411 A.6.14 291,763,900,000 291,763,900,000
1.1. Contributions of owners 411.1 291,810,960,000 291,810,960,000
a. Common shares with voting rights 411.1a 291,810,960,000 291,810,960,000

b. Preferrence shares 411.1b - =
1.2. Share premium 411.2 . -
1.3. Convertible Bond Option - Equity Component 4113 - -
1.4. Other owners' equity 411.4 % =
1.5. Treasury shares 411.5 (47,060,000) (47,060,000)
2. Differences from revaluation of assets at fair value 412 s -
3. Foreign exchange rate differences 413 - -
4. Charter capital reserve fund 414 5,109,984,355 5,109,984,355
5. Operational risk and financial reserve 415 5,109,984,355 5,109,984,355
6. Other fund of owners’ equity 416 - -
7. Undistributed profit 417  A.6.15 6,739,804,064 (36,292,755,460)
7.1. Realized profit 417.1 (194,624,400) (36,262,448,501)
7.2. Unrealized profit 417.2 6,934,428,464 (30,306,959)
II. Funding sources and other funds 420 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 337,539,574,948 277,809,765,185
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND OWNERS' EQUITY 440 337,539,574,948 277,809,765,185
PROFITS DISTRIBUTED TO INVESTORS 450 - -
1. Profit distributed to investors 451 - =
These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 9
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Hai Phong City

B01a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

INTERIM OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

As at June 30, 2025

ITEMS

A. ASSETS OF THE COMPANY AND ASSETS
MANAGED UNDER AGREEMENTS

. Leased fixed assets

. Valued certificate under trust
. Collateral

. Bad debt written-off

. Foreign currencies

. Outstanding shares

. Treasury shares

~N QN AW =

8. Financial assets listed/registered for trading at
Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation

("VSDC") of the Company

9. Non-traded financial assets deposited at VSDC of the

Company

10. Awaiting financial assets of the Company
11. Financial assets for correcting trading errors of the

Company

12. Financial assets which have not been deposited at

VSDC of the Company

13. Entitled financial assets of the Company

B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMENT WITH CUSTOMERS

Number of securities

1. Financial assets listed/registered for trading at VSDC

of investors
a. Unrestricted financial assets
b. Restricted financial assets

¢. Mortgaged financial assets

d. Blocked financial assets

e. Financial assets awaiting settlement
[. Financial assets awaiting lending
2. Non-traded financial assets deposited at VSDC of

investors

a. Unrestricted and non-traded financial assets

deposited at VSDC

b. Restricted and non-traded financial assets deposited

at VSDC

¢. Mortgaged and non-traded financial assets

deposited at VSDC

d. Non-traded and blocked financial assets deposited

at VSDC

3. Awaiting financial assets of investors
4. Financial assets correcting trading errors of investors

5. Financial assets undeposited at VSDC of investors
6. Entitled financial assets of investors

CODE

001
002
003
004
005
006
007
008

009

010
011

012

013

021

021.1
021.2

021.3
021.4
021.5
021.6
022

022.1

022.2

022.3

022.4

023
024.a

024.b
025

Unit: VND
NOTE Closing balance Opening balance
A.6.16 69,430,579,966 69,430,579,966
29,176,390 29,176,390
4,706 4,706
A.6.17 63,035,810,000 1,047,810,000
- 93,650,000,000

A.6.18
A.6.19 2,105,208,530,000 2,408,265,130,000

2,081,169,080,000
20,146,110,000
1,032,000,000
2,861,340,000

A.6.20 -

2,195,942,440,000
188,849,500,000
20,000,000,000

3,473,190,000

10,189,770,000

10,189,770,000

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward,

Hai Phong City

B01a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

INTERIM OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

As at June 30, 2025
(Continued)

ITEMS

7. Investors' deposits

7.1 Investor's deposits for securities trading activities
managed by the Company

a. Investor's deposits for securities trading activities
managed by the Company

b. Investor's deposits for securities trading activities
managed by commercial banks
7.2 Investor's synthesizing deposits for securities
trading activities
7.3. Clearing deposits and payment of securities
transactions
a. Clearing deposits and payment of securities
transactions by domestic investors
b. Clearing deposits and payment of securities
transactions by foreign investors

7.4. Deposits of securities issuers

8. Payables to investors about investors' deposits for
securities trading activities managed by the Company

8.1. Payables to domestic investors for securities
trading activities managed by the Company

8.2. Payables to foreign investors for securities trading
activities managed by the Company

9. Payable to the issuer of securities

9.1. Payables to domestic investors for securities
trading activities managed by the Company

9.2. Payables to foreign investors for securities trading
activities managed by the commercial bank

10. Receivables of customers on financial asset trading
errors

11. Payables of customers on financial asset trading
errors

12. Dividends, bond principal and interest payables

Nl“/Vf-»

CODE

026
027

027.1

027.2

028

029

029.1

029.2

030
031

031.1

031.2

032
032.1

032.2

033

034

035

NOTE

A.6.21

A.6.22

A.6.22

Closing balance

Opening balance

118,630,816,642
113,747,838,906

113,747,838,906

2,923,397,290
2,901,060,172

22,337,118

1,959,580,446
116,671,236,196

116,648,899,078

22,337,118

1,959,580,446

82,709,619,704
80,593,635,630

80,593,635,630

127,320,655
105,005,800

22,314,855

1,988,663,419
80,720,956,285

80,255,458,139

465,498,146

1,988,663,419

Hai Phong, July 28, 2025

“CONG TY

cO PHAN

NGUYEN THU HANG

Preparer

VU THI THANH NGA

Chief Accountant

A
‘OM
UVEN-TP

Acting General Director

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes



HAI PHONG SECURITIES

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward, Hai

Phong City

B02a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements

from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

INTERIM INCOME STATEMENT
From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

Unit: VND

ITEMS CODE NOTE Current period Previous period
I. OPERATING INCOME
1.1. Gain from financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL) 01 46,477,048,547 26,616,727,656
a. Gain from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL 01.1 B.6.23.1 39,481,015,247 5,236,023,135
b. Gain from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL 01.2 B.6.23.1 6,996,029,300 20,791,455,491
. ;PLDividend interest income from financial assets at 013 B.623.2 4,000 589,249,030
1.2. Gain from held-to-maturity (HTM) investment 02 B.6.232 - 510,678,081
1.3. Gain from loans and receivables 03 B.6.23.3 5,885,897,732 6,538,236,391
1.4. Gain from available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets 04 B.6.23.2 1,000,000,000 -
1.5. Gain from hedging derivatives 05 - -
1.6. Revenue from brokerage services 06 B.6.23.4 3,862,056,965 5,332,774,964
1.7. Revenue from underwriting and issuance agency 07 - -
services
1.8. Revenue from securities investment advisory services 08 - -
1.9. Revenue from securities custodian services 09 B.6.23.4 554,225,359 647,240,024
1.10. Revenue from financial advisory activities 10 B.6.23.4 929,109,090 30,927,272
1.11. Revenue from other operating activities 11 B.6.23.4 30,533,831 33,021,833
Total operating income 20 58,738,871,524 39,709,606,221
II. OPERATING EXPENSES
2.1. Loss from financial assets at fair value through profit
it s (FVECEL) p 21 37,489,525 16,085,250,576
a. Loss from disposal of financial assets at FVTPL 21.1 B.6.23.1 - 10,898,496,692
b. Loss from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL 21.2 B.6.23.1 31,293,877 5,186,753,884
c¢. Transaction costs of acquisition of financial assets at
FVTPL 21.3 6,195,648 -
2.2. Loss from held-to-maturity (HTM) investment 22 - -
2.3. Interest expenses, loss from loans and receivables 23 - -
2.4. Provision expenses for financial assets, handling losses 24 (185,722,618) 1,070,675,845
of doubtful receivables and impairment of financial assets
and borrowing costs of loans
2.5. Loss from hedging derivatives financial assets 25 - -
2.6. Expenses for proprietary trading activities 26 B.6.26 522,223,435 893,045,918
2.7. Expenses for brokerage services 27 B.6.27 5,113,578,161 5,943,550,641
2.8. Expenses for underwriting and issuance agency services 28 - -
2.9. Expenses for securities investment advisory services 29 - -
2.10. Expenses from securities custodian services 30 B.6.27 407,583,468 467,018,184
2.11. Expenses from financial advisory activities 31 B.6.27 1,139,765,604 -
2.12. Expenses from other operating activities 32 - -
Total operating expenses 40 7,034,917,575 24,459,541,164
III. FINANCIAL INCOME
3.1. Realized and unrealized gains from foreign exchange 41 - -
rate differences
3.2. Dividend income and interest income from demand 42 B.6.24 319,381,204 1,360,164,327
deposits
3.3. Gain from disposal of investment in subsidiaries and 43 - -
associates
3.4. Other investment income 44 - -
Total financial income 50 319,381,204 1,360,164,327
These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 12
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward, Hai
Phong City

INTERIM INCOME STATEMENT
From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025
(Continued)

B02a - CTCK
Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

Unit: VND
ITEMS CODE NOTE

IV. FINANCIAL EXPENSES
4.1. Realized and unrealized loss from foreign exchange

Current period Previous period

A\

rate differences ol ) )
4.2. Borrowing costs 52 B.6.25 1,147,589,007 -
4.3. Other investment expenses 55 - -
Total financial expenses 60 1,147,589,007 -
V. SELLING EXPENSES 61 - -
VI. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 62 B.6.28 8,157,682,025 8,938,159,955
VII. OPERATING PROFIT 70 42,718,064,121 7,672,069,429
VIII. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES
8.1. Other income 71 316,126,168 143,652,801
8.2. Other expenses 72 1,630,765 22,823,700
Total other operating profit 80 314,495,403 120,829,101
IX. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 920 43,032,559,524 7,792,898,530
9.1. Realised profit 91 36,067,824,101 (7,811,803,077)
9.2. Unrealised profit 92 6,964,735,423 15,604,701,607
X. CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES 100 B.6.29 - -
10.1. Current corporate income tax expense 100.1 = =
10.2. Deferred corporate income tax expense 100.2 - .
e (‘;ISICEOTIILI;TING PROFIT AFTER CORPORATE 0, 43,032,559,524 7,792,898,530
11.1. Profit after tax attributable to owners 201 43,032,559,524 7,792,898,530
11.2. Profit after tax allocated to funds 202 - -
XII. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 300 - -
AFTER CORPORATE INCOME TAX
Total comprehensive income 400 - =
12.1. Comprehensive income attributable to owners 401 - -
12.2. Comprehensive income attributable to others 402 - -
XIIL NET INCOME ON THE COMON SHARES 200 ' )
13.1. Basic earnings per share 501 B.6.30 1,474.91 267.10
Hai Phong, July 28, 2025
\L o g / CONG TY
(AW V/ Y CO PHAN
NGUYEN THU HANG VU THI THANH NGA
Preparer Chief Accountant

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes 13



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien
Ward, Hai Phong City

B03b - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Indirect method
From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

ITEMS
1. Cash flows from operating activities
1. Profit before tax
2. Adjustments for:
- Depreciation and amortization of fixed assets
- Provisions
- Unrealized (gain)/loss from foreign exchange rate
difference
- Interest expenses
- Gains, losses from investment activities
- Accrued interest income
- Other adjustments
3. Increase in non-monetary expenses
- Loss from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL
- Loss from impairment of held to maturity (HTM)
investments
- Loss from impairment of loans

- Loss on recognition of difference assessed at fair value of
available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets when reclassifying

- Impairment of Fixed Assets and Investment Properties

- Provision expenses for impairment of long-term financial
investment

- Other loss

4. Decrease in non-monetary income

- Gain from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL

- Gain on recognition of difference assessed at fair value
of available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets when
reclassifying

- Other gains

5. Operating profit before changes in

working capital

- Increase (decrease) in financial assets through profit or
loss at FVTPL

- Increase (decrease) in held-to-maturity (HTM)
investments

- Increase (decrease) in loans

- Increase (decrease) in available-for-sale (AFS) financial
- Increase (decrease) in receivables from disposal of
financial assets

- Increase (decrease) in receivables and accrued dividends,
interest of financial assets

- Increase (decrease) in receivables from services provided
by the Company

- Increase (decrease) in receivables on financial assets
trading errors

- Increase (decrease) in other receivables

- Increase (decrease) in other assets

CODE NOTE

01
02

03
04
05

06
07
08
09
10

11
12

13
14

15
16

17
18

19
20

21
30

31

32

33
34
35

36

37

38

39
40

Current period

Unit: VND
Previous period

43,032,559,524
268,050,269

299,094,480
(185,722,618)

1,147,589,007
(319,381,204)
(673,529,396)

31,293,877
31,293,877

(6,996,029,300)
(6,996,029,300)

(33,666,179,259)

(60,010,060,247)

34,760,322,178
54,000,000,000

1,106,110,674

30,862,861

32,760,742
(547,581,565)

7,792,898,530
(1,107,760,267)
381,925,177
1,070,675,845

(1,432,891,600)
(1,127,469,689)

5,186,753,884
5,186,753,884

(20,791,455,491)
(20,791,455,491)

92,684,603,491
94,374,909,307
(40,000,000,000)

(1,027,303,859)
38,000,000,000

1,259,522,644

(6,000,000)

822,712,404
(593,791,744)

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien
Ward, Hai Phong City

B03b - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

INTERIM CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Indirect method (Continued)
From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

- Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses (excluding
interest expenses)
- Increase (decrease) in prepaid expenses

Corporate income tax paid

Interest expenses paid

Increase (decrease) in trade payable

Increase (decrease) in employee benefit

- Increase (decrease) in Statutory obligation (excluding
corporate income tax paid)

- Increase (decrease) in payable to employees

- Increase (decrease) in payable on financial asset trading
- Increase (decrease) in other payables

- Other receipts from operating activities

- Other payments from operating activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

I1. Cash flows from investing activities

1. Purchase and construction of fixed assets, investment
properties and other assets

2. Proceed from disposal and sale of fixed assets,
investment properties and other assets

3. Cash payments for investment in subsidiaries, joint
ventures, associates and other investments

4. Cash receipt from capital withdrawal from subsidiaries,
joint ventures, associates and other investments

5. Dividends and profits received from long-term financial
investments

Net cash flows from investing activities

I1I. Cash flows from financing activities

1. Cash receipt from issuance of shares and capital
contributed by shareholders

2. Repayment of capital contributed by shareholders,
repurchase of issued shares

3. Drawdown of loan principals

4. Repayment of loan principals

5. Repayment of finance lease debts

6. Dividends, profits distributed to shareholders

Net cash flows from financing activities

IV. Increase, decrease net cash in year

V. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
year

Cash

Cash equivalents

Impacts of foreign exchange rate differences

VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
Cash

Cash equivalents

Impacts of foreign exchange rate differences

42
43
44
45
46
47

48

50
51
52
60

70

71

72
73
74
75
76
80

920

101
101.1
101.2

102

103
103.1
103.2

104

(766,740,000)

860,541,945

(995,882,429)
(60,001,313,480)

(66,594,850)

602,105,451

39,818,802 (105,003,338)
(553,103,464) (56,382,909)
(796,705,317) (737,719,575)
(810,209,959) 643,623,760

13,000,000 )

(28,000,000) (425,473,800)
2,669,695,111 83,765,040,147
. (2,247,960,000)

- 72,727,273

319,381,204 1,360,164,327
319,381,204 (815,068,400)
54,600,000,000 .
(35,050,000,000) .
(57,882,060) -
19,492,117,940 .
22,481,194,255 82,949,971,747
69,082,052,156 8,106,040,603
49,082,052,156 8,106,040,603
20,000,000,000 -
91,563,246,411 91,056,012,350
91,563,246,411 6,056,012,350

85,000,000,000

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

15

NI\ =LY



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien
Ward, Hai Phong City

B03b - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

CASH FLOW FROM BROKERAGE AND TRUST ACTIVITIES OF CUSTOMERS

ITEMS

I. CASH FLOW FROM BROKERAGE AND TRUST
ACTIVITIES OF CUSTOMERS

1. Cash receipts from disposal of brokerage securities of
customers

2. Cash payments for acquisition of brokerage securities of
customers
3. Proceeds from disposal of customers' trust securities

4. Payment for disposal of customers' trust securities
5. Loans received from Settlement Assistance Fund
6. Payment to Settlement Assistance Fund

7. Cash receipts for settlement of securities transactions of
customers
8. Payment to settle securities transactions of customer

9. Deposits received from Investors for Customer
Investment Trust Activities"
10. Payments for Customer Investment Trust Activities

11. Payments of securities custody fees of customers
12. Proceeds from stock trading errors

13. Payments for stock trading errors

14. Proceeds from the securities issuers

15. Payment for the securities issuers
Increase, decrease in net cash in year

II. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF
CUSTOMERS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

Cash at bank at the beginning of the year:

Investors' deposits managed by the Company for securities
trading activities

Clearing deposits and payment of securities transaction
Deposits of securities issuers

III. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS OF
CUSTOMERS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

Cash at bank at the end of the year:

Investors' deposits managed by the Company for
securities trading activities

Clearing deposits and payment of securities transaction

Deposits of securities issuers

NLV

>

CODE NOTE

01

02

03
04
05

06
07

08
09

10

11
12
13
14
15
20

30
31
32

34
36

40
41
42

44
46

Current period

Previous period

1,143,675,924,400

(975,183,143,560)

(132,163,066,522)

(379,434,407)

92,107,658,923
(92,136,741,896)
35,921,196,938

82,709,619,704
82,709,619,704
80,593,635,630

127,320,655
1,988,663,419

118,630,816,642
118,630,816,642
113,747,838,906

2,923,397,290
1,959,580,446

1,504,726,590,390

(1,469,003,227,470)

(35,048,934,870)

(646,721,424)

57,821,965,780
(57,836,210,410)
13,461,996

99,833,159,592
99,833,159,592
96,639,204,785

31,801,707
3,162,153,100

99,846,621,588
99,846,621,588
97,722,531,297

29,752,718
2,094,337,573

Hai Phong, July 28, 2025

/CONG TY X

CO PHAN

NGUYEN THU HANG
Preparer

VU THI THANH NGA
Chief Accountant

UGN 50

ral Director

These Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B09a - CTCK

Address: No.7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Interim Financial statements for the period
Ward, Hai Phong City From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

CHARACTERISTICS OF COMPANY'S OPERATIONS

License for establishment and operation of the Company

Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company ("Company") was established and operates under Securities
Business Registration License No.119/GP-UBCK issued by the State Securities Commission dated
November 23, 2015 on the basis of merging Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (Securities
Business Registration License No.13/UBCK-GP issued on October 21, 2003) and A Au Securities Joint
Stock Company (Securities Business Registration License No.75/UBCK-GP issued on December 21,
2007).

The Company's latest securities business license is the amended Securities Company Establishment and
Operation License No.74/GPDC-UBCK issued by the State Securities Commission dated October 14,
2024, which approves the change of the legal representative.

Company’s address

The Company’s headoffice is located at: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Ward, Hai
Phong City.

Main business activities

Capital scale of the company

Charter capital : VND 291,810,960,000 (7wo hundred ninety one billion, eight hundred ten million,
nine hundred sixty thousand dong).

The total charter capital of the Company is divided into 29,181,096 (Twenty-nine million, one hundred
eighty-one thousand, ninety-six) shares with a par value of VND 10,000 (ten thousand dong)/share.

Investment objective

The Company's investment objective is to participate in securities business activities in accordance with
the law and the Company's Charter. These activities include securities brokerage, proprietary trading,
securities investment consulting, and securities underwriting.

Company’s structure

The Company has two dependent accounting branches as follows:

Name Address Activities

Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock No. 328, Vo Van Kiet, 4" Floor, Stock brokerage,
Company — Ho Chi Minh City Center Garden Cau Ong Lanh Securities  investment
Branch Ward, Ho Chi Minh City advisory service

Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock 2nd Floor, 163 Ba Trieu, Hai Ba Stock brokerage
Company — Hanoi City Branch Trung Ward, Hanoi

Company Investment Restrictions

The Company complies with the regulations of Article 28, Circular 121/2020/TT-BTC issued by the
Ministry of Finance on December 31, 2020, regulating the operations of securities companies, as follows:

e The Company is not allowed to purchase or contribute capital to acquire real estate, except in
cases where it is used as the headquarters, branches, or transaction offices directly serving the
business operations of the securities company.

e The company purchases and invests in real estate as prescribed in the above clause and fixed
assets according to the principle that the remaining value of fixed assets and real estate does not
exceed fifty percent (50%) of the total asset value of the securities company.

e The total investment value in corporate bonds of the Company does not exceed seventy percent
(70%) of its owner’s equity. The Company, which is licensed to conduct proprietary trading
activities, is permitted to repurchase and resell listed bonds in accordance with relevant
regulations on bond repurchase transactions.

Notes to financial statements are an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 18
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B09a - CTCK

Address: No.7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Interim Financial statements for the period
Ward, Hai Phong City From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

II.

2.1

2.2

I11.

3.1

3.2

e The Company is not allowed to directly or entrust other organizations or individuals to:

— Invest in shares or capital contributions of a company that owns more than fifty percent (50%) of
the Company's charter capital, except for the purchase of odd-lot shares at the request of a
customer;

— Invest with related persons from five percent (5%) or more of the charter capital of another
securities company;

— Invest more than twenty percent (20%) of the total number of shares and fund certificates in
circulation of a listed organization;

— Invest more than fifteen percent (15%) of the total number of shares and fund certificates in
circulation of an unlisted organization; this regulation does not apply to member fund certificates,
exchange-traded funds and open-ended funds;

— Invest or contribute capital more than ten percent (10%) of the total capital contribution of a
limited liability company or business project;

— Investing or contributing more than fifteen percent (15%) of the owner's equity in an organization
or business project;

— Investing more than seventy percent (70%) of the owner's equity in shares, capital contributions
and business projects, of which no more than twenty percent (20%) of the owner's equity is
invested in unlisted shares, capital contributions and business projects.

Employees

As at June 30, 2025, the total number of employees of the Company is 45 people, as at December 31, 2024
it is 45 people.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD, CURRENCY UNIT USED IN THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD

Accounting period

The Company's fiscal year begins on January 1 and ends on December 31 of the calendar year.

Accounting currency

The Company uses the Vietnam Dong (VND) for bookkeeping and financial statements preparation.
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND SYSTEM

Accounting standards applied

The Company applies the accounting system for securities companies issued under Circular No.
210/2014/TT-BTC dated December 30, 2014, by the Ministry of Finance and Circular No. 334/2016/TT-
BTC dated December 27, 2016, by the Ministry of Finance, which amends, supplements, and replaces
Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210/2014/TT-BTC.

Statement on compliance with Accounting Standards and Accounting System

The Company performs accounting for securities companies in compliance with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards and the current accounting system applicable to securities companies, as stipulated in Circular
No. 210/2014/TT-BTC dated December 30, 2014, issued by the Ministry of Finance, which provides
guidance on accounting for securities companies. Additionally, it follows Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC
dated December 27, 2016, issued by the Ministry of Finance, which amends, supplements, and replaces
Appendix 02 and Appendix 04 of Circular 210/2014/TT-BTC, as well as other relevant legal regulations
on the preparation and presentation of interim financial statements

The interim financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards. The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the
financial position, results of operations, cash flows and changes in owners’equity in accordance with
accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

Notes to financial statements are an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 19



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B09a — CTCK

Address: No.7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Interim Financial statements for the period
Ward, Hai Phong City From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

IV.

4.1.

4.2.

4.2.1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED

Principles for recording cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank deposits, short-term investments with maturity not exceeding 3
months from the date of purchase, highly liquid, easily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject
to an insignificant risk of conversion into cash.

Customer deposits (Investors' deposits for securities transactions under the management method of
securities companies, deposits of issuers,...) are reflected in off-balance sheet indicators on the interim
Financial Statements.

Principles and Accounting Methods for Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
(FVTPL), investments held to maturity (HTM), loans and receivables, and available-for-sale (AFS)
financial assets

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets recognized through profit or loss (FVTPL) in the Company's financial asset portfolio are
financial assets held for the purpose of buying and selling in the financial market, based on research and
analysis, with the expectation of generating profits.

Financial assets FVTPL determined on the basis of satisfying one of the following conditions:
a. Financial assets are classified as held for trading. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:
(i) It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the short term;

(ii) At initial recognition, it is part of a specific portfolio of financial instruments that is managed and
for which there is evidence of short-term profit-taking; or

(iii) It is a derivative (except for derivatives that are designated as a financial guarantee contract or an
effective hedging instrument).

b. At the initial recognition, the Company has determined that these financial assets are classified as at fair
value through profit or loss. The Company may only make this classification when the conditions in
section (a) are met, or when this classification allows for more appropriate presentation of financial
information for one of the following reasons:

(i) It eliminates or significantly reduces inconsistencies in recognition or measurement that may arise
from valuing assets or recognizing profits or losses on different bases; or

(ii) A group of financial assets is managed, and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis in
accordance with a documented risk management policy or investment strategy. Information about
this asset group is provided internally to the Company's key management personnel.

When the Company sells financial assets that do not belong to the FVTPL financial asset category, these
financial assets are reclassified as Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss.

FVTPL financial assets belong to the Company's financial asset portfolio, including fixed-term deposits.
For fixed-term deposits, classification should be based on the following maturity periods: under 3 months,
from 3 months to 1 year, and over 1 year.

Investments in equity instruments that are not listed on a stock exchange and whose value cannot be
reliably determined will not be recognized through profit or loss.

FVTPL financial assets within the Company's financial asset portfolio are initially recognized at cost,
which is the actual purchase price of the financial assets (for unlisted securities of the Issuing
Organization) or the executed trading price on stock exchanges (for listed securities). The purchase price
of financial assets does not include acquisition costs such as brokerage fees, transaction fees, and banking
fees. The acquisition costs of FVTPL financial assets are recorded as transaction expenses in the separate
income statement at the time of occurrence.

Notes to financial statements are an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 20
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B09a - CTCK

Address: No.7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Interim Financial statements for the period
Ward, Hai Phong City From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4.2.2.

4.2.3.

When selling FVTPL financial assets within the Company's financial asset portfolio, the "purchase price"
of the sold FVTPL financial assets is determined using the weighted average cost method at the time of
sale.

As at the financial position reporting date, FVTPL financial assets within the Company's financial asset
portfolio are remeasured at market price or fair value (if no market price is available). Any increase or
decrease resulting from the revaluation of FVTPL financial assets within the Company's financial asset
portfolio is recognized on a non-offsetting basis and presented in the income statement under two
indicators:

- The decrease in revaluation of FVTPL financial assets is reflected under the item "Loss" and the
transaction costs of purchasing financial assets, as well as proprietary trading activities of FVTPL,
specifically under the detail “Decrease in revaluation of financial assets recognized through
profit/loss.

- The increase in revaluation of FVTPL financial assets is reflected in “Income,” specifically under
the item “Increase in revaluation of financial assets recognized through profit/loss”.

Held to maturity investments (HTM)

Held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and a fixed maturity that the Company intends and is able to hold until maturity, except for:

a. Financial assets that, at the time of initial recognition, have been classified as fair value through profit or
loss;

b. Financial assets classified as available for sale;

c. Financial assets that satisfy the definition of loans and receivables.

Held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets are initially recognized at cost, which is the purchase price plus
directly attributable transaction costs incurred in acquiring or issuing these financial assets, such as
brokerage fees, transaction fees, underwriting fees, and bank fees (whether purchased through stock
exchanges or off-exchange).

After initial recognition, held-to-maturity (HTM) financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a
group of HTM investments and allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash flows to be paid or
received over the expected life of the financial instrument, or a shorter period if applicable, back to the net
present carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

As of the financial position statement date, the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence
indicating impairment of one or a group of held-to-maturity financial assets. If any such evidence exists,
the Company determines the amount of impairment loss for the group of financial assets and recognizes
the impairment loss in the comprehensive income statement under the profit/loss.

Loans

Loans in the Company's financial asset portfolio are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and are not listed on an active market.

Initial recognition of the Company's loans occurs only when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the financial instrument. The Company recognizes loans in the Statement of Financial
Position only when it becomes a party to the contractual terms of a financial instrument.

The Company's loans during the period include: loans granted to customers for purchasing securities under
margin trading regulations of margin loan contracts, and advance payment agreements for customers'
securities sales.
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4.2.4.

Loans are initially recognized at cost. After initial recognition, loans are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest rate method, except for:

a. Loans classified as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. These loans, including
derivative liabilities, are measured at fair value, except for derivative liabilities related to and required to
be settled by delivering an unlisted equity instrument whose value cannot be reliably determined, which
are measured at cost.

b. Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition
or when applicable under the continuing involvement regulations.

c. Financial guarantee contracts.
d. Commitments to provide loans at below-market interest rates.
Loans are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows.

b. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the outstanding principal amount at specified dates.

For the application of (b), interest is the compensation for the time value of money and the credit risk
associated with the outstanding principal amount over a specific period.

As at the financial position reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence
indicating impairment of one or a group of loan financial assets. If any such evidence exists, the Company
determines the amount of any impairment loss for these financial assets and recognizes the impairment loss
on loans in the comprehensive income statement - profit/loss.

Financial Assets Available for Sale (AFS)

a. Financial assets available for sale (AFS) within the Company's financial asset portfolio are non-
derivative financial assets that are designated as available for sale or are not classified as: Loans and
receivables;

b.Held-to-maturity investments;
c. Financial assets recognized through profit or loss.

Financial assets available for sale AFS within the Company's financial asset portfolio do not include fixed-
term deposits and derivative financial assets.

Initial recognition of AFS financial assets occurs only when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the financial instrument.

AFS financial assets purchased within the Company's financial asset portfolio are initially recognized at
cost, which is the actual purchase price of the financial assets (for unlisted securities of the issuing
organization) or the transaction price of securities on stock exchanges (for listed securities). The purchase
price of AFS financial assets includes directly related costs incurred in acquiring these financial assets,
such as brokerage fees, transaction fees, and banking fees, etc.

When selling or redeeming AFS financial assets at maturity within the Company's financial asset portfolio,
the purchase price of the assets sold is determined using the weighted average cost method at the end of the
trading day.

At the date of the Financial Statement, AFS financial assets in the Company's Financial Assets Portfolio
are revalued at market price or fair value (in case there is no market price).

- The decrease in fair value revaluation of AFS financial assets, based on market valuation, is
recorded under the item "Revaluation difference of assets at fair value", specifically "Revaluation
difference of available-for-sale financial assets", in the Statement of Financial Position, under
“Account 4121 - Revaluation difference of financial assets at fair value”.

- The increase in fair value revaluation of AFS financial assets, based on market valuation, is recorded
under the item "Revaluation difference of assets at fair value", specifically "Revaluation difference
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of available-for-sale financial assets", in the Statement of Financial Position, under “Account 4121 -
Revaluation difference of financial assets at fair value”.

- Any increase or decrease in the fair value revaluation of AFS financial assets within the Company’s
financial asset portfolio, based on market valuation, is directly recorded under Equity in the
Statement of Financial Position under the item "Revaluation difference of financial assets at fair
value".

As at the reporting date of the Financial Statement, the Company assesses whether there is any objective
evidence indicating a decline in the fair value of one or a group of available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets.
If any such evidence exists, the Company determines the fair value of any impairment loss on this group of
financial assets and recognize the impairment loss in the Comprehensive Income Statement — Profit/Loss.

If impairment losses on AFS financial assets had previously been recognized directly in equity, then, upon
obtaining objective evidence of impairment, the accumulated losses previously recorded in equity shall be
reclassified and recognized in profit/loss as an adjustment entry, even if the asset has not been
derecognized.

4.2.5. Principle of derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or a portion of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:
- The Company no longer has the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset; or

- The Company transfers the right to receive cash flows from the financial asset or simultaneously
incurs an obligation to pay nearly all the received cash flows to a third party under a transfer
agreement, and:

+ The Company transfers substantially all risks and rewards associated with the asset, or

+ The Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of the asset but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company transfers the right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a transfer
agreement with a third party but has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards associated with the
asset or control over the asset, the asset remains recognized as the Company's asset. In such cases, the
Company also recognizes a corresponding liability. The transferred asset and the corresponding liability
are recorded based on the rights and obligations retained by the Company.

If the recognized liability is in the form of a guarantee, the transferred assets are recorded at the lower
between their original carrying amount and the maximum amount the Company is required to pay.

4.2.6. Provision for impairment of financial assets and morigaged assets

At the financial reporting date, the Company assesses the impairment of the following financial assets:
held-to-maturity investments, loans, available-for-sale financial assets, and collateralized assets.

Objective evidence of impairment of a financial asset or a group of financial assets includes data collected
from asset holders regarding the following loss events: significant financial difficulties of the issuer or
counterparty, breach of contract (e.g., default on principal or interest payments), concessions granted by
the lender to the borrower due to financial or legal difficulties, a high probability of bankruptcy or financial
restructuring of the borrower, or the absence of an active market for the financial asset due to financial
difficulties,etc.

If an impairment loss is identified for these financial assets, a provision for impairment is made and is
recognized in the Income Statement. If a previously impaired financial asset is later assessed to have
recovered its value, the impairment provision is reversed accordingly, reducing the impairment provision
and recognizing a decrease in losses from impairment of financial asset and borrowing costs.

When financial assets are derecognized (due to sale, reclassification, liquidation, or maturity), any
previously recognized impairment provision for these financial assets is reversed and recorded as a
reduction in losses from impairment of financial asset and borrowing costs related to the derecognized
asset.
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For collateralized assets, the Company reassesses their value based on market prices or fair value (if no
market price is available) to determine whether the borrower provides additional collateral or if a provision
for collateral depreciation should be made. If the value of the collateralized asset falls below the loan value
based on market price or fair value (as stipulated in the loan agreement with collateral), a provision for
collateral depreciation is established.

Conditions for Provisioning for Depreciation of Collateralized Assets:
a. The collateralized financial assets are accepted by the Company in compliance with securities laws.

b. They are freely tradable on the securities market, and at the time of revaluation for financial reporting,
their net realizable value (market price or fair value) is lower than the loan value recorded in the
accounting books, based on market value or the agreed value in the loan agreement with collateral.

The provision amount for collateral depreciation is determined as the difference between the net asset
value (based on market price or fair value) and the loan value (based on market price or fair value as per
the loan agreement). Any increase or reversal of this difference is recorded under "Losses and transaction
costs on financial asset purchases and proprietary trading activities".

4.2.7. Market value/Fair value of financial assets

The fair value of financial assets is determined based on principles, valuation methods, or theoretical
pricing models approved by the Board of Management. Specifically:

- The market value of listed securities on the Hanoi Stock Exchange (HNX) and Ho Chi Minh City
Stock Exchange (HOSE) is the closing price on the most recent trading day before the revaluation
date.

- For securities of unlisted public companies traded on UPCoM, the market value is determined as the
average closing price on the most recent trading day before the revaluation date.

- For delisted or suspended trading securities, from the sixth days afterward, their prices are the book
value at the most recent financial statement.

- For unlisted and securities unregistered for trading on the Unlisted Public Company Marjet
(UPCoM), the fair value is determined based on market prices obtained from reference sources
deemed reliable by the Executive Board.

- If no reference prices are available, the valuation considers the issuer’s financial condition and book
value at the revaluation date to assess potential impairment.

4.2.8. Principles of reclassification of financial assets
Reclassification when selling financial assets not in the FVTPL group

When a securities company sells financial assets not classified as FVTPL, it will reclassify those assets
from other related categories into FVTPL financial assets. Any revaluation differences of AFS financial
assets are recorded in the income statement under "Gains from Available-for-Sale (AFS) Financial Assets"
for positive revaluation differences, or "Losses and Recognition of Fair Value Revaluation Differences of
AFS Financial Assets upon Reclassification" for negative revaluation differences.

Reclassification Due to Changes in holding intentions

A securities company will reclassify financial assets into a more appropriate category if there is a change in
holding intention or ability, as follows:

- If a non-derivative FVTPL financial asset is not required to be classified as a FVTPL financial asset
at initial recognition, it may be classified as a loan and receivable, in some special cases, or as cash
and cash equivalents if it satisfies the conditions for classification into this group. Gains and losses
recognized due to revaluation of FVTPL financial assets before the classification date will not be
reversed.
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4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.6.1.

- If, due to a change in intention or ability to hold, the classification of an investment as a held-to-
maturity (HTM) investment is no longer appropriate, the investment is transferred to the AFS
financial asset group and is valued at fair value. The difference between the book value and the fair
value will be recorded in the Income Statement for the period under the item “Gain from available-
for-sale (AFS) financial assets” or the item “Loss and recognition of price difference based on fair
value of available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets upon reclassification”.

Principles of recording tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises its purchase price and any costs directly attributable to
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the asset has been put into operation, such as maintenance and repairs, are
recognised in the income statement in the period in which they are incurred. In cases where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of the asset beyond its originally assessed standard of performance,
the expenditures are capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.

When a tangible fixed asset is sold or disposed of, its cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the statement of financial position and any gain or loss resulting from its disposal is recognised in the
income statement.

Tangible fixed assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each
group of fixed assets as follows:

Assets Useful life
Transportation 10 years
Machinery & Equipment 03 — 08 years
Office equipment 03 — 08 years

Principles for recognition of intangible fixed assets

The original cost of intangible fixed assets is the total cost to acquire intangible fixed assets up to the time
of putting the asset into use as expected.

The Company's intangible fixed assets include copyright value, accounting software, securities trading
software, company website and other management software systems that are not part of the related
hardware, are capitalized and accounted for as intangible fixed assets. Copyrights and software are
amortized using the straight-line method within 03 to 08 years.

Principles for recognition and presentation of short-term and long-term deposits and collaterals
Short-term and long-term deposits are deposits to perform a contract.
Principles and accounting methods for receivables

Principles and accounting methods for receivables from financial assets

Receivables from the sale of financial assets: This includes the total amount receivable from the sale of
financial assets within the Company's portfolio (not through stock exchanges), including the maturity value
of financial assets or the liquidation value of these assets. Receivables from the sale of financial assets in
the Company's portfolio are recorded in detail for specific debtor, tracked by transaction and payment.

Receivables and accrued dividends and interest from financial assets: This includes all receivables and
accrued amounts for dividends and interest from financial assets in the Company's portfolio that arise
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4.6.2.

4.6.3.

4.7.

4.8.

4.8.1.

during the accounting period. Interest on loans and fixed deposits is calculated based on the agreed interest
rate and term. Dividends and interest are recognized from the date the right is established or as per the
contract or agreement.

Principles and accounting methods for other receivables

Other receivables include only those related to "Other Income".

Principles and accounting methods for provision for doubtful receivables

The Company establishes a provision for doubtful receivables based on estimates of recoverability, but not
lower than the provision rate guided by Circular No. 48/2019/TT-BTC issued by the Ministry of Finance
on August 8, 2019, as follows:

Overdue Period Provision Rate
From 06 months to under 01 year 30%
From 01 year to under 02 years 50%
From 02 years to under 03 years 70%
Over 03 years 100%

The provision or reversal of the provision for doubtful receivables and impairment of receivables during
the financial year (at the end of the accounting period) is recorded as an increase in expenses (when
provisioning) or a decrease in expenses (when reversing).

Principles and accounting methods for prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses are actual expenses incurred but related to the business results of multiple accounting
periods. These expenses are allocated to the business expenses of subsequent periods.

Prepaid expenses are tracked in detail by term. At the financial reporting date, prepaid expenses with a
term of no more than 12 months or one business cycle from the prepayment date are classified as short-
term prepaid expenses. Prepaid expenses with a term of more than 12 months or more than one business
cycle from the prepayment date are classified as long-term prepaid expenses.

Prepaid recorded as short-term and long-term prepaid expenses are allocated over a period of 6 months to 3
years into the Income Statement using the straight-line method, including: office repair costs, tool and
supply costs, and other costs. Specifically, the goodwill from the merger between Hai Phong Securities
Joint Stock Company (HPC) and A Au Securities Joint Stock Company (AAS) to form Hai Phong
Securities Joint Stock Company (HAC) with a total value of VND 14,599,329,729 is amortized over 10
years from the merger date.

Principles and accounting methods for liabilities

Principles and accounting methods for payables related to securities trading activities

Payables related to securities trading activities include amounts payable to organizations providing services
for the purchase and sale of financial assets of the Company or its clients through stock exchanges, where
the Company acts as a member, or to agents participating in securities issuance for issuers related to the
Company's underwriting activities.

Fees payable to organizations providing securities trading services is determined in accordance with the
volume of transactions conducted and the agreed fees between the service provider and the Company. The
Company only recognizes service fees for clients in securities business expenses based on the principle of
matching service commitments with actual revenue from licensed business activities.
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4.8.2. Principles and accounting methods for payables to securities issuers

Payables to securities issuers include amounts payable to securities issuers for the sale of underwritten
securities by the Company, whether as the lead or co-underwriter, including cases where the Company
sells issued securities through agents.

4.8.3. Principles and accounting methods for taxes and other payables to the state

The Company calculates and determines taxes, fees, charges, and other amounts payable to the State in
accordance with applicable laws or collects taxes at source as required and promptly reflects the tax
payable. Accurate and complete tax declaration is the Company's obligation.

The Company tracks in detail of tax, fee, charge, and other amounts payable, paid, and remaining payable
to the State.

+ Value Added Tax (VAT): Securities brokerage, proprietary trading, securities underwriting, investment
advisory, and other securities business activities as regulated are not subject to VAT..

+ Taxes collected on behalf of the State from employees:
Personal Income Tax (PIT) from salaries and wages.

The Company declares, pays, and finalizes PIT withheld at source on behalf of individuals in accordance
with current tax laws.

+ Taxes collected on behalf of the State from investors:
PIT from securities transfer.

PIT from capital investment.

The Company declares, pays, and finalizes PIT withheld at source on behalf of individuals in accordance
with current tax laws.

4.9. Principles and accounting methods for accrued expenses

Accrued expenses include the value of expenses that have been recognized in business operating expenses
for the period but have not been actually paid by the financial period-end date, based on the matching
principle between revenue and expenses. Accrued expenses are recognized based on reasonable estimates
of the amounts payable for goods and services used.

Accrued expenses in the Company's operations include: electricity and water costs, internet service fees,
office supplies, and other operating expenses. Accrued expenses are recognized based on actual invoices
and documents received after the accounting period-end date.

4.10. Principles and methods for recognizing other payables

Other payables are amounts payable not directly related to the Company's main business activities,
including late payment fees, incorrect account payments, and other payables.

4.11. Principles and methods for recognizing issued bonds
At initial recognition, bonds are typically recorded at cost, which includes the proceeds from the bond
issuance minus issuance costs. Any discounts, premiums, and issuance costs are amortized over the bond's
term using the straight-line method.

4.12. Principles and accounting methods for recognizing owners’ equity of the securities company

4.12.1. Principles for recognizing owners' investment capital

Owners' investment capital is the actual capital contributed by shareholders.

4.12.2. Principles for recognizing the company's profit

Principles for recognizing realized profit:

Notes to financial statements are an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 27

AN” A\

s

VIR 4



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B09a - CTCK

Address: No.7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien Interim Financial statements for the period
Ward, Hai Phong City From January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Realized profit for the accounting period is the difference between total revenue, income and total
expenses recognized in the Company's Comprehensive Income Statement accumulated during the period.

Total income and revenue in this item include: Revenue from securities business services, net of any
revenue deductions (if any); Gains from the sale of financial assets in the Company's portfolio, dividend
and interest income from proprietary financial assets in the investment portfolio; Financial income and
other income.

Expenses included in this item include: Direct and indirect securities business expenses, net of any expense
deductions; Losses from the sale of financial assets, transaction costs for purchasing financial assets,
impairment losses on financial assets, borrowing costs, provisions, transaction costs for selling financial
assets, service provision costs, financial expenses, selling expenses, administrative expenses, and other
expenses.

Principles for recognizing unrealized profit:

Unrealized profit for the accounting period is the difference between the total gains and losses from the
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL or other financial assets recognized in the income statement of the
Company's financial asset portfolio accumulated during the period. Revaluation differences for Available-
for-Sale (AFS) financial assets are presented in Other Comprehensive Income and are not included in the
unrealized profit recognized in the income statement for the business period.

4.12.3. Principles for profit distribution

Accumulated undistributed realized profit up to the end of the previous year (N-1) is the basis for profit
distribution to owners. Unrealized profit up to the end of the previous year (N-1) is not the basis for
distribution to owners.

The Company's profit distribution to owners ensures transparency and compliance with corporate law,
securities law, and other relevant laws, the Company's Charter, and resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

4.13. Principles and accounting methods for recognizing revenue and income

4.13.1. Principles and methods for recognizing revenue and accrued dividends and interest from financial
assets

Revenue and income are economic benefits received that increase the Company's equity. Revenue and
income are recognized at the time the transaction occurs, when it is certain that the economic benefit will
be received, determined at the fair value of the amounts receivable, regardless of whether the cash has been
received or not.

Revenue from the sale of financial assets recognized through profit or loss

Revenue from the sale of financial assets recognized through profit or loss is the increase in the difference
between the actual selling price and the purchase price (determined using the weighted average method at
the end of the trading day).

Dividends and interest from financial assets

Interest income from financial assets in the Company's portfolio: FVTPL, HTM, Loans, AFS is recognized
on an accrual basis based on the actual interest rate for each accounting period.

When accrued interest on an investment has been accumulated before the Company repurchases the
investment, the interest received from the investment is allocated to both the periods before and after the
purchase. Only the interest for periods after the financial assets are purchased (after the transfer of
ownership) is recognized as the Company's interest income. The interest for periods before the financial
assets are purchased is recorded as a reduction in the value of the financial assets themselves.

Dividends and profit distributions from financial assets in the Company's investment portfolio: FVTPL,
HTM, AFS are recognized when the Company is entitled to receive dividends from the ownership of
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shares established (on the ex-dividend date) for shares in the Company's financial asset portfolio formed
before the ex-dividend date and with the Issuer's dividend announcement established (based on the General
Meeting of Shareholders' resolution, Members' Meeting resolution on dividend distribution, based on all
electronic information sources from the Stock Exchange, the Issuer's website, Depository Center,
information from Bloomberg, Reuters). Dividends are not recognized for shares traded after the ex-
dividend date.

For bonus shares, only the increase in the number of shares entitled (on the ex-dividend date) is
recognized, without increasing the Company's income.

Loan interest, as per securities law, is calculated and recognized as the Company's income in accordance
with the customer's commitments regarding the interest rate and the term of use of the Company's assets.

Service revenue provided to clients complies with the business activities specified in the Company's
Establishment and Operation License.

a. Service revenue is recognized when the conditions for recognizing service revenue as per the Revenue
Standard are met;

b. Realized revenue is determined based on net revenue: Initial revenue minus any revenue deductions (if
any) arising during the accounting period;

c. Service revenue provided to clients (investors and other organizations) is confirmed as completed based
on the client's immediate payment in cash or acceptance of payment or commitment to pay (recorded in
the economic contract or related documents) or deducted from the client's securities sale proceeds;

d. Service revenue provided to the Company's clients is performed on the securities business activities that
the Company is licensed to operate. This revenue includes:

Securities brokerage revenue: The brokerage fee the Company earns from providing securities brokerage
services to clients. Securities brokerage revenue is determined based on the brokerage fee that investors
pay to the Company when securities transactions are executed according to the investor's orders and
other fees earned from securities brokerage activities as per securities law. This revenue is determined at
the end of each month.

Securities_depository revenue: The depository fee earned from clients when the Company provides
securities depository services as per securities law to clients. Securities depository revenue includes:
Providing registration and depository services for clients; Executing securities transactions on the stock
exchange for clients; Providing shareholder register management and transfer agency services as
requested by issuers that are not public companies. This revenue is determined at the end of each month.

Securities investment advisory revenue: The fee the Company earns from providing securities investment
advisory services to investors during the accounting period.

4.13.2. Principles and methods for recognizing other income and other expenses

4.14.

Other income outside the Company's business and investment activities includes: Income from the sale or
liquidation of fixed assets, contract violation penalties, recovered previously written-off receivables, other
compensations, such as compensation received from third parties to cover asset losses, etc.

Other expenses outside the expenses serving the Company's business and investment activities in financial
assets include: Contract penalties, tax penalties, etc.

Principles for recognizing financial revenue and financial expenses
The Company's financial revenue is recognized when the following two conditions are met:

- There is a possibility of obtaining economic benefits from the transaction;

- The revenue can be determined with reasonable certainty.

The Company's financial revenue includes revenue from non-fixed bank deposits. Interest on non-fixed
deposits is calculated based on the agreed interest rate.
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4.15.

4.16.

4.17.

4.18.

4.19.

The Company's financial expenses include actual financial expenses incurred (regardless of whether cash
has been paid or not) directly related to the Company's financial activities or prepaid. The Company's
financial expenses during the period include: interest expenses.

Principles for recognizing losses and transaction costs of financial assets

Losses and transaction costs of financial assets include: Losses from the sale of proprietary financial assets
at FVTPL, transaction costs for purchasing financial assets at FVTPL, revaluation losses of the Company's
financial assets, provision (or reversal) for doubtful receivables from the sale of financial assets or
financial assets that have matured and are unrecoverable, provision for impairment of collateral assets, and
losses from financial assets with collateral and other investment costs.

Principles for recognizing general and administrative expenses

The Company's genera and administrative expenses include: Salaries for management staff (wages,
salaries, allowances, etc.); social insurance, health insurance, union fees, unemployment insurance for
management staff; office supplies, tools, depreciation of fixed assets used for management; land rent,
license tax; external services (electricity, water, telephone, fax, property insurance, fire insurance, etc.);
other cash expenses (entertainment, etc.).

The Company's general and administrative expenses are tracked in detail according to the content of the
Company's business management activities as regulated.

Principles and methods for recognizing current corporate income tax expenses

Current corporate income tax expenses are determined based on taxable income and the corporate income
tax rate in the current year. The Company's taxable income differs from the income reported in the Income
Statement because taxable income does not include non-taxable items or non-deductible expenses for tax
purposes.

The Company applies a corporate income tax rate of 20%.

The Company's tax reports are subject to review by tax authorities. Due to the varying interpretations of
tax laws and regulations for different types of transactions, the tax amounts presented in the financial
statements may be changed based on the final decision of the tax authorities.

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company after deducting the bonus and welfare fun by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the period.

Diluted earnings per share are determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company (after deducting the reserve for rewards and welfare) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding due to the effect of potentially dilutive ordinary shares to
calculate diluted earnings per share.

Related parties

Parties are considered related to the Company if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or to exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operational
decisions. Parties are also considered related to the Company if they are under common control or
significant influence. Related parties may be companies or individuals, including close family members of
individuals considered related.

In considering relationships, the substance of the relationship is emphasized more than the legal form.

Notes to financial statements are an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 30
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

V.

S.1.

5.2.

5.3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES COMPANY
General qualitative and quantitative explanation of financial risks for the securities company

The Company's operations expose it to market risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. The Company's general
financial risk management policy focuses on anticipating unfavorable market fluctuations and mitigating
their adverse effects on the Company's business performance.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty in a financial instrument or customer contract fails to fulfill its
obligations, resulting in financial loss for the Company. The Company has an appropriate credit policy and
regularly monitors the situation to assess whether it is exposed to credit risk. Credit risk is assessed as low.
The Company is exposed to credit risk from bank deposits, customer receivables, margin trading activities,
and financial investments. The maximum credit risk for each group of financial assets is equal to the
carrying amount of that group of financial instruments on the balance sheet.

Receivables

The Company regularly monitors customer receivables and requires customers to make full payments in
accordance with contracts. The Company strives to maintain control over outstanding receivables and has a
credit control unit to minimize credit risk.

The Company establishes provisions for impairment to reflect the estimated loss on customer receivables,
other receivables, and investments. The main component of these impairment provisions is the specific loss
related to the estimated impairment of individual customers. As at June 30, 2025, the Company has no
outstanding customer receivables.

Bank deposits

The Company primarily maintains deposits at well-known banks in Vietnam. Credit risk from bank
deposits is managed by the Treasury/Financial Resources and Business Department in accordance with the
Company's policy. The maximum credit risk for each item in the financial statements at each reporting
period is the carrying amount. The Company considers the concentration of credit risk for bank deposits to
be low.

Loans

The Company manages customer credit risk through its policies, procedures, and controls related to margin
lending and advances for securities sales to customers.

The Company only provides margin lending for securities eligible for margin trading under the Margin
Lending Regulations and rated according to the Company's stock quality assessment principles. Credit
limits are controlled based on collateral value, customer creditworthiness, and control indicators.

The Board of Management assesses that all financial assets are current and not impaired, as they are related
to reputable customers with good payment capabilities.

Margin trading activities

The Company has no overdue receivables or potential losses as at the financial reporting date.

Financial investments

The Company's financial investments are impaired, and the Company establishes provisions for
impairment at the financial reporting date. However, for unlisted securities, the Company has not
established provisions due to the lack of market transactions, making it impossible to determine market
prices.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company faces difficulties in meeting its financial obligations due to a
lack of funds. The Company's liquidity risk primarily arises from the mismatch in the maturity dates of
financial assets and financial liabilities.

Notes to financial statements are an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 31

o -
=

YR Y/

-

WA\



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B09a - CTCK
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5.4.

The Company monitors liquidity risk by maintaining a level of cash and cash equivalents that the Board of
Management considers sufficient to support the Company's business operations and mitigate the impact of
cash flow fluctuations.

The Board of Management assesses the concentration of liquidity risk as low. The Management believes
that the Company can generate sufficient funds to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
payments as at June 30, 2025:

Item Overdue Within 1 Year 1to 5 Years Over Total
5

Years
Financial assets
Cash - 91,563,246,411 E - 91,563,246,411
Financial assets at
FVTPL - 108.,031,696,270 - - 108.031,696,270
Held-to-maturity ) ) ) } )
investments (HTM)
Receivables - 63,197,841,447 - - 63.,197,841,447
Loans 65,384,674,099 - - 65,384,674,099
Available-for-sale (AFS) - - - - -
il : 183,875,196 580,786.200 . 764,661,396
and deposits
Other non-current assets ) ) ) } )
— Offsetting fund
Total - 328,361,333,423 580,786,200 - 328,942,119,623
Financial liabilities
- ByRbiEsrseouniies - 19,550,000,000 - - 19,550.000,000
trading
Payables to suppliers - - - - -
Raxewanil peyablosto - 530,381,517 . : 530,381,517
the State
Payables to employees - 996,180,398 - - 996.180,398
Employee benefits - 124,316,314 - - 124,316,314
Accrued expenses - 151,706,578 - - 151,706,578
Other current payables - 7.455,525,100 - - 7.455,525,100
Total Ouanginl - 28,808,109,907 - - 28,808,109,907
liabilities
Net liquidity difference - 299,553,223,516 580,786,200 - 300,134,009,716

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to
changes in market prices. Market prices are subject to risks such as interest rate risk and other price risks,
such as equity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include deposits and short-term
investments. The purpose of market risk management is to manage and control market risks within
acceptable limits while maximizing returns.

The Company's business operations are exposed to risks from changes in interest rates and prices. The
Company does not hedge against these risks due to the lack of a market for purchasing such financial
instruments and the assessment that the cost of hedging may exceed the market risk from future changes in
the factors affecting financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
due to changes in market interest rates. The Company's market risk from interest rate changes primarily
relates to cash, short-term deposits, and loans.

The Company manages interest rate risk by analyzing the competitive market environment to obtain
favorable interest rates for the Company's purposes while remaining within its risk management limits.

Notes to financial statements are an integral part and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements 32
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Company does not perform sensitivity analysis for interest rates because the risk of interest rate
changes as of the financial reporting date is insignificant.

Price risk

Price risk of financial instruments (equity prices, bond prices) is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market prices, excluding changes in interest
rates and exchange rates.

Listed and unlisted financial instruments held by the Company may be affected by market risks arising
from the uncertainty of the future value of financial instruments. The Company manages price risk by
setting investment limits and diversifying its investment portfolio. The Board of Managment also reviews
and approves decisions to invest in financial instruments.

At the date of preparation of the Financial Statements for the financial period from January 1, 2025 to June
30, 2025, the fair value of the Company's investments in listed shares is insignificant, so the stock price
risk is very low.
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia

Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

B 09a - CTCK
Interim Financial Statements

from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
VL. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET
The items are presented in Vietnam Dong (VND).

A.6.1. Cash and cash equivalents

Closing balance
91,497,661,281

Opening balance
49,074,198,205

Cash at banks for activities of securities company

Clearing deposits and payment for securities transaction 65,585,130 7,853,951
Cash equivalents - 20,000,000,000
Total 91,563,246,411 69,082,052,156
A.6.2. Value and volume of transactions during the year
Current period Previous period
Volume of Value of Volume of Value of
Items transactions transactions transactions transactions
The Company 7,007,500 226,413,950,000 3,950,366 115,353,655,750
Shares 7,007,500 226,413,950,000 3,950,366 115,353,655,750
Investors 147,859,726 2,118,859,067,960 183,814,744 2,973,729,817,860
Shares 147,859,726 2,118,859,067,960 183,814,744 2,973,729,817,860
Total 154,867,226 2,345,273,017,960 187,765,110 3,089,083,473,610
A.6.3. Financial assets
6.3.1. Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
i Opening balance
FVTPL assets Closing balance p g
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Listed shares 3,444,409 400,200 3,444,409 411,400
Upcom shares 39,137,343,397 46,081,056,070 644,728,150 617,454,200
Bonds 61,956,480,000 61,950,240,000 40,439,035,000 40,439,035,000
Total 101,097,267,806 108,031,696,270 41,087,207,559 41,056,900,600
6.3.2. Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets
i Opening balance
AFS assets Closing balance p g
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Unlisted shares - - 54,000,000,000 54,000,000,000
Total - - 54,000,000,000 54,000,000,000
6.3.3. Loans
Closing balance Opening balance
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Margin loans 63,472,112,093 62,221,436,248 97,820,814,665 96,384,416,202

Loans for securities sales
advance

Total

1,912,562,006

1,912,562,006

2,324,181,612

2,324,181,612

65,384,674,099

64,133,998,254

100,144,996,277

98,708,597,814

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 34
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia
Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

B 09a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A.

A.6.4.

6.4.1.

6.4.2.

A.6.5.

A.6.6.

NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

Receivables

Receivables from financial assets
Dividends and interest income due to be received

Accruals for undue dividend and interest income
Total

Other receivables

Other receivables
Total

Prepaid expenses

a) Current

Tools, supplies
Office rental
Software rental cost
Other costs

b) Non-current
Tools and supplies
Office repair costs

Goodwill (*)
Other costs

Total

Closing balance

Opening balance

1,732,720,382
673,529,396

1,732,720,382
1,106,110,674

2,406,249,778

2,838,831,056

Closing balance

Opening balance

18,621,010

51,381,752

18,621,010

51,381,752

Closing balance

Opening balance

517,900,473 564,642,504
44,048,431 25,082,666
135,325,818 148,789,520

* 190,766,660

338,526,224 200,003,658
1,155,594,111 1,969,394,025
313,719,317 -

. 6,028,208

729,966,495 1,459,932,981
111,908,299 503,432,836
1,673,494,584 2,534,036,529

(*): is the value arising from the merger between Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (HPC) and A Au
Securities Joint Stock Company (AAS) to form Hai Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (HAC), with a total
value of VND 14,599,329,729, which will be allocated over 10 years from the merger date.

Increase and decrease of tangible fixed assets

Machinery and Means of Management Total

equipment transportation equipment

COST
Opening balance 13,053,459,584 - 316,661,413 13,370,120,997
Purchase during the period - - -
Closing balance 13,053,459,584 - 316,661,413 13,370,120,997
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance 10,703,464,519 - 236,959,813 10,940,424,332
;)e]r)izgrec‘a“"“ gmng T 198,818,196 6,526,284 205,344,480
- Disposal - - - -
Closing balance 10,902,282,715 - 243,486,097 11,145,768,812
CARRYING AMOUNT
Opening balance 2,349,995,065 - 79,701,600 2,429,696,665
Closing balance 2,151,176,869 - 73,175,316 2,224,352,185

-.——————s————————u—— - § - .- .-

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 36
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Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia
Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

B 09a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

A.

A.6.7.

A.6.8.

A.6.9.

The cost of fixed assets fully depreciated but still in use:

The cost of temporarily unused fixed assets:

The carrying value of tangible fixed assets which used as collateral for loans:

Increase and decrease of intangible fixed assets

Items

COST

Opening balance

Purchase during the period

- Disposal

Closing balance
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Opening balance

- Depreciation during the period
- Disposal

Closing balance

CARRYING AMOUNT
Opening balance

Closing balance

In which:

The cost of intangile fixed assets fully depreciated but still in use

The cost of temporarily unused intangible fixed assets:

9.954.425.847 dong
0 dong
0 dong
Copyright, patent Computer software Total
3,728,764,540 15,771,328,340 19,500,092,880
3,728,764,540 15,771,328,340 19,500,092,880
2,236,325,024 15,771,328,340 18,007,653,364
93,750,000 - 93,750,000
2,330,075,024 15,771,328,340 18,101,403,364
1,492,439,516 - 1,492,439,516
1,398,689,516 - 1,398,689,516
18.000.092.880 dong
0 dong
0 dong

The carrying value of intangible fixed assets used as collateral for loans:

Advances

Advances to third parites
Other emloyees
Advances to related parties

Total

Deposits, collaterals and pledges

a) Current

Deposit for office rental of Ho Chi Minh Branch
Deposit to rent Diamond Crow apartment

Other deposits

b) Non-current

Deposit for office rental

Deposit for office rental of Hanoi Branch
Other deposits

Total

Closing balance

Opening balance

54,758,522 45,000,000
54,758,522 45,000,000
54,758,522 45,000,000

Closing balance

Opening balance

183,875,196 196,875,196
162,875,196 162,875,196
11,000,000 11,000,000
10,000,000 23,000,000
580,786,200 552,786,200
420,930,000 420,930,000
111,856,200 111,856,200
48,000,000 20,000,000
764,661,396 749,661,396

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 37
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia Vien
Ward, Hai Phong City

B 09a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A. NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

A.6.10. Payment for Settlement Assistance Fund

Closing balance

Opening balance

Initial payment
Additional annual payment

Annual interest distribution

Total

120,000,000 120,000,000
4,371,296,738 4,133,160,283
1,077,406,166 777,719,578
5,568,702,904 5,030,879,861

According to Decision No. 45/QD-VSD dated May 22, 2014, by the Vietnam Securities Depository, the Company
must deposit an initial amount of VND 120,000,000 at the Vietnam Securities Depository and annually pay an
additional 0.01% of total amount of listed securities brokered trasactions at the Stock Exchanges for the previous

year, but not over VND 2,500,000,000.

Securities companies engaged in trading and brokerage activities are required to make a maximum contribution of

VND 20,000,000,000 to the Settlement Assistance Fund.

A.6.11. Taxes and other payables to the State

Closing balance

Opening balance

Value added tax
Personal income tax

Total

193,000 331,364
530,188,517 1,142,787,958
530,381,517 1,143,119,322

Changes in taxes and other payables to the State during the year

Payable amount

Opening balance during the year

Paid amount
during the year

Closing balance

Value added tax 331,364 - 138,364 193,000
Personal income tax 1,142,787,958 2,309,375,861 2,921,975,302 530,188,517
Other taxes - 4,136,802 4,136,802 -
Total 1,143,119,322  2,313,512,663 2,926,250,468 530,381,517

A.6.12. Accrued expenses

Closing balance

Opening balance

Interest expenses

Operating expenses

151,706,578

766,740,000

Total

151,706,578

766,740,000

A.6.13. Other payables

Closing balance

Opening balance

Dividends payable to shareholders of the securities company

5,803,340,890

5,861,222,950

Dividends payable to shareholders - non-depository shareholders - 25,704,000
AAS other payables - 55,863,180
Dividends payable to shareholders - depository shareholders - 28,000
Ohers 1,234,684,210 2,380,798,989
Total 7,038,025,100 8,323,617,119

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 38
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A. NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued)
A.6.14. Share capital

Dao Son Tung
Tran Anh Duc

Vu Hoang Viet
Other shareholders

Closing balance

Opening balance

291,810,960,000

47,936,630,000
58,182,900,000
72,572,120,000
113,119,310,000

Total 291,810,960,000 291,810,960,000
Shares Closing balance Opening balance
Authorized shares 29,181,096 29,181,096
Issued shares 29,181,096 29,181,096
- Common shares 29,181,096 29,181,096
- Preference shares = -
Repurchased shares 4,706 4,706
- Common shares 4,706 4,706
- Preference shares - -
Shares in circulation 29,176,390 29,176,390
- Common shares 29,176,390 29,176,390
- Preference shares - -
Par value (VND) 10,000 10,000

A.6.15. Undistributed profit

Closing balance

Opening balance

Realized profit (194,624,400) (36,262,448,501)
Unrealized profit 6,934,428,464 (30,306,959)
Total 6,739,804,064 (36,292,755,460)

A.6.16. Bad debt written-off

Closing balance

Opening balance

Receivable from disposal of financial assets 62,929,009,770 62,929,009,770
Receivables from securities trading activities 982,570,196 982,570,196
Advances to suppliers 5,519,000,000 5,519,000,000
Total 69,430,579,966 69,430,579,966

A.6.17. Financial assets listed/registered for trading at Vietnam Securities Depository of the Company

Closing balance

Opening balance

UpCom 15,034,410,000 1,046,410,000
Unlisted Public 1,400,000 1,400,000
Bonds 48,000,000,000 -
Total 63,035,810,000 1,047,810,000

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 39
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Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

A. NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

A.6.18. Financial assets which have not been deposited at Vietnam Securities Depository of the Company

Closing balance

Opening balance

Term deposits - 20,000,000,000
Ba Huan Corporation - 20,000,000,000
Blue Invesments Joint Stock Company - 14,000,000,000
Bonds of Vietnam Joint Stock Commercial Bank for - 39,650,000,000
Industry and Trade

Total - 93,650,000,000

A.6.19.  Financial assets listed/registered for trading of investors

Closing balance

Opening balance

Unrestricted transferable financial assets
Restricted transferable financial assets
Mortgaged financial assets

Frozen, temporarily seized financial assets

Financial assets awaiting settlement

2,081,169,080,000
20,146,110,000
1,032,000,000
2,861,340,000

2,195,942,440,000
188,849,500,000
20,000,000,000

3,473,190,000

Total

2,105,208,530,000

2,408,265,130,000

A.6.20. Non-traded financial assets deposited at VSD of investors

Closing balance

Opening balance

Unrestricted and non-traded financial assets deposited at
VSD

10,189,770,000

Total

10,189,770,000

A.6.21. Investors' deposits

Closing balance

Opening balance

Investor's deposits for securities trading activities
managed by the Company

- Domestic investor's deposits for securities trading
activities managed by the Company

Clearing deposits and payment of securities transactions

- Clearing deposits and payment of securities
transactions of domestic investors
- Clearing deposits and payment of securities
transactions of foreign investorsc

Deposits of securities issuers

116,671,236,196

113,747,838,906

2,923,397,290
2,901,060,172

22,337,118

1,959,580,446

80,720,956,285

80,593,635,630

127,320,655
105,005,800

22,314,855

1,988,663,419

Total

118,630,816,642

82,709,619,704

A.6.22.  Payables to investors

Closing balance

Opening balance

Payables to investors - investors' deposits for securities
trading activities managed by the Company

Domestic investors

Foreign investors

Dividends, bond principal and interest payables

116,671,236,196

80,720,956,285

Total

116,648,899,078 80,255,458,139
22,337,118 465,498,146
1,959,580,446 1,988,663,419
118,630,816,642 82,709,619,704

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 40
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia
Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

B 09a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B.
6.23.2.

6.23.3.

6.23.4.

B.6.24.

B.6.25.

B.6.26.

B.6.27.

NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

Gain from financial assets and held-to-maturity (HTM) investment

Dividend, interest income from financial assets at FVTPL

From held-to-maturity (HTM) investment
From AFS Financial Assets
Total

Gain from loans and receivables

Interest from margin activities

Loan interest from advance activities
Total

Revenue other than income from financial asset

Revenue from brokerage services
Revenue from financial advisory activities
Revenue from securities custodian services

Other revenue

Total

Financial income

Interest income from deposits

Total

Financial expenses

Interest expense
Total

Expenses for proprietary trading activities

Expenses for management of proprietary trading activities

Total

Expenses for service provision

Expenses for brokerage services
Expenses from securities custodian services

Financial advisory costs
Total

Current period

Previous period

4,000

1,000,000,000

589,249,030
510,678,081

1,000,004,000

1,099,927,111

Current period

Previous period

5,585,208,626
300,689,106

6,243,688,339
294,548,052

5,885,897,732

6,538,236,391

Current period

Previous period

3,862,056,965

5,332,774,964

929,109,090 30,927,272
554,225,359 647,240,024
30,533,831 33,021,833
5,375,925,245 6,043,964,093

Current period

Previous period

319,381,204

1,360,164,327

319,381,204

1,360,164,327

Current period

Previous period

1,147,589,007

1,147,589,007

Current period

Previous period

522,223,435

893,045,918

522,223,435

893,045,918

Current period

Previous period

5,113,578,161

5,943,550,641

407,583,468 467,018,184
1,139,765,604 -
6,660,927,233 6,410,568,825

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 42



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Gia
Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

B 09a - CTCK

Interim Financial Statements
from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

B.
B.6.28.

B.6.29.

B.6.30.

NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT (Continued)

General and administrative expenses
Current period

Previous period

Salary and related expenses 4,721,010,114
Office supplies expenses 2,974,998
Tools and instrument expenses 72,659,838
Depreciation of fixed assets 39,271,758
Taxes, fees, and charges 4,000,000
Outsourced services expenses 345,147,950

Other Expenses 2,972,617,367

4,842,998,337
753,300
60,124,907
274,239,276
4,000,000
504,633,332
3,251,410,803

Total 8,157,682,025

8,938,159,955

Corporate Income Tax

Current period

Previous period

Profit before tax 43,032,559,524
Adjustments to increase/( decrease) in accounting profit (6,964,735,423)
Increased adjustment 31,293,877
Decreased adjustment (6,996,029,300)
Accumulated losses carried forward (36,067,824,101)

Taxable income -
Tax rate 20%

7,792,898,530
(15,729,670,637)
5,651,033,884
(21,380,704,521)

(7,936,772,107)
20%

Current corporate income tax -

The Company is subject to a 20% corporate income tax (CIT) rate on taxable income.

The Company does not recognize deferred tax assets or deferred tax liabilities as there are no significant
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the tax bases of assets and liabilities in the financial

statements.

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share allocated to the Company's common

shareholders is based on the following data:

Current period

Previous period

Profit after corporate income tax 43,032,559,524

Profit allocated to the common shareholders of the 43,032,559,524

7,792,898,530
7,792,898,530

Company

Amount appropriated for the bonus and welfare fund during - -
Average outstanding common shares during the year (*) 29,176,390 29,176,390
Basic earnings per share 1,474.91 267.10

(*) Average outstanding common shares during the year are determined as follows:

Current period

Previous period

Average outstanding common shares at the beginning of the 29,176,390 29,176,390
Average number of additional shares issued and i i
converted during the period

Less: average number of treasury shares repurchased during - -
Average common shares circulation in the period 29,176,390 29,176,390

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 43



SN BN A o= R

vt spudwaIpIg [p1oUDUl SUldundwodIp Y3 YJIM UOLOUNLUOD Ul PDaL 2G pInOoYS pup Jo 14vd D821 UD WLIOf SIJOU 2SIY ]
PIS6SS TE0'EY XB) dwodul 3)810d.10d 13)J€ JJoIq
- asuadxa xe) owoour 9je10d10d JuaLIn)
S9L0E9°1 sasuadxa 1y10
891°9Z1°91¢€ awooul 1PYI0
LOO68S LY1 1 sasuadxa [eroueul
v0T'18€°61¢€ awodUl [BIOURUI]
YT6 ILT OVS P sy nsaa Sunesado juswiSas
STOT89°LSI‘S sjuewdas ssaursnq Aq payesoj[eun sasuadxy
6¥6°€S6°E0L 1S - (€89°zz1‘081) SOT‘8SO°E0T ‘LY TEL'L68'S88'S (SO€“6L8VO1°T) synsas Sunesado Juswssg
SLS'LI6VEO'L - ¥09°S9L°6E1°1 TreE066°€LE - 629°191°1¢TS°S sosuadxs SunesadQ
VIS ILS‘8ELSS - 176°TH9°656 LYS'SYOLLY'LY TEL'L68'S88'S PTETSTIIY'Y anuaAdl Sunesado [0,
- anuaAai Sunerado juawFas-Iaju|
vTS1L88ELSS = 126°T79°656 LYS8YO'LLY LY TEL'L68S88’S vTET8TIIVY anuaAal Sunjesado [eusdlxyg
SOIIAIOE

[eloL suoISn[IXy

SIaNIANIE Suiped)

FRARE DO K1epradoag

sapIAnIE

Apojsnd SanLINI3s
uBo| UISIBIA] POl i

pue agesdnjoag

:sjuswiSas ssoursnq urewr SuImMoq[oy ay} ojur paziiogajes ale suonerado sAuedwo)) ay [ ‘syuSWIas ssaursng 13Y10 JO
9SOY} WO JUSISJJIP SIJOUAQ JIWIOUOId PUB SYSLI YIIM ‘S301AIas pue sponpolid jo uorsiaoid 10 uononpoid ayy ur pageSus jusuodwios djqeynuapl Ajojeredss e si Juowidas ssauisng v

‘uorjeurojur juow3es [eorydei30s3

[euonippe apiaoid 03 paimbai jou si juswaFeuRIA JO pieog Y} ‘210Ja19y [ “eaIe [eorydei3osd o[Suls e ur sajerado Auedwo)) oy Jey) SOARI[9q JUSWATRURIA] JO pieog s Aueduio)
oy ‘a10j010y [, "3jo1d pue anuaAal [e103 s,Auedwo)) oy jo uoniodoid [[BWS € JOJ SJUNOIIE YOIYM ‘SUBO[ UISIBUI WOLJ SNUIAI 9)JeIdudF A[UO SuUOIZal I9YJ0 Ul SANIAIIR SSaulsng
arym 9yoad pue anuaaal s,Auedwo)) sy Jo Auiofew oy ajeiousd vare Suoyq ey ur saniande Surpen Areyoridord pue ‘Surpus] urSreuwr ‘Apoisnd sanjLIMods ‘93eIAN0Iq SIANLINAS

yoday juowdds  1€°9q

LIOdTY INTIDIS A

(ponuyuop) SINHINALV.LS TVIONVNIA FHL OL SHLON

SZ07 ‘0€ dung 0) §ZOT ‘10 Alenuep woly
SHUdUI)B)S [BIdURUI WILIdU]

MOLD - 860 d

AnD Suoyd 1eH ‘piepy USTA BID 191 Suoyd SUOH a7 V8T 10T °L “ON :SS3IPPY
ANVJAINOD MDOLS INIOf SALLINNDAS ONOH IVH



9%

vt

h 1,

SpuawaInIS (p1oUPUL] SUIUDdUI0ID 2Y) YJIM UOLIPUNLUOD Ul ppa4 29 pInoys pub JO 1ivd [D4321uUl UD WLIO) S2I0U ISIY

PLI‘T06°S18°8T - LET'SLL'OLY

9L6°LITI‘16T°E€T

YL1°T06°S18°8T LET'BLLOLY

9L6°L11°16T°ET

8V6'VLS 6ES'LEE - 096°L¥T°660°1

T8ILIS'SIV 91

11¥°9vT°€95°16
LES'8TE9L6 ST 096°L¥T'660°1

T8ILIS STV T91

[BloL SUOISNIXY SANIANIE JYIQ

SaNIANOR Suipet)
Kieyaradoag

pIET8YL88T LEL'ETS'991‘T saniqer| [ejoL
SonIIqel] pajedojjeul)
vTETSY'L88T LELETS 991°C sonI[Iqer] Juaw3as 1921
sapIIqery
€96'PI1VES L TEP'SPY LTI 01 §)asse [B)0,
S19SSE pajedoj[eu)
€96 V11 vES 1L TEV' 8P LTI 01 sjosse Juow3as 10211
NENN%
sanIApoe
SaNIAI}OE Apojsnd SanLINIIS
ueo[ uIdIB pue ageadjoig

:SMO[[0] Se aIe Juow3as ssauisnq Aq sanI[Iqel] pue s}esse Juawsas s Aueduio) ay ],
(panunuo)) j1o0day Juowidds [€°9°q

(ponuyuo)) SINHINALVLS TVIONVNIA AHL OL SALON

SZ0T ‘0€ dunf 0) $ZOT ‘10 Arenuep wouy
SJUdWIA)E)S [BIDUBUL{ WLId)U]

MOLD - 860 4

AyD Suoyd IeH ‘pIep USIA BID 101§ Suoyd SUoH 277 V8Z 10T °L "ON :SS3IPPY
ANVJINOD MDO0LS LNIOf SAILIMNDIS ONOHJ IVH



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B 09a - CTCK
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Interim Financial Statements

Gia Vien Ward, Hai Phong City

from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

E.6.32

E.6.32.1

E.6.32.2

E.6.32.3

OTHER INFORMATION

Operating lease commitments

At the period-end, the Company has following irrevocable operating lease commitments:

Current period Previous period
Head office rental 1,003,216,500 1,003,216,500
Ho Chi Minh City branch office rental 378,949,032 406,919,080
Hanoi branch office rental ' 427,006,800 270,421,405
Total 1,809,172,332 1,680,556,985

The operating lease commitment is reflected in the following contract.

- Office lease contract No. 05/2021/TA-HASECO for the lease of 576 m? at No. 07, Lot 28A, Le Hong Phong
Street, Cat Bi Airport New Urban Area, Dong Khe Ward, Ngo Quyen District, Hai Phong City, used as the
company’s head office. The lease period is from May 1, 2022, to April 30, 2027, with a rental price of VND
152,002,500 per month.

- Office lease contract No. 07/HDTVP/REC/CDC for the lease of 127.6 m? in the office building of Central
Garden Tower at 328 Vo Von Kiet, Co Giang Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City, used as the Ho Chi Minh
City branch office. The lease term is one year from April 1, 2023, with a rental price of VND 49,508,800 per
month.

- Office lease contract No. 01/2021/HPTN dated June 20, 2022 and appendix Contract No. 05/LHDTVP dated
June 1, 2023 on leasing 205 m2 on Floor 2, No. 163 Ba Trieu Street, Le Dai Hanh Ward, Hai Ba Trung
District, Hanoi as the office of Hanoi branch, lease term of 1 year from May 1, 2023 with lease price of 2,460
USD/month.

Subsequent events after balance sheet date

There were no subsequent events after the balance sheet date that had a material impact or could materially
affect the Company's operations and financial performance.

Related parties information

Related parties:

A related party is an entity or individual that has control over, or can exert significant influence on, another
party in financial and business decision-making. Related parties include companies such as parent companies,
subsidiaries, individuals direct or indirect through one or more intermediaries having control over the Company
or under the Company’s control, or under common control. Associates, individuals directly or indirectly having
voting rights in the Company and significant influence over the Company, key management personnel such as
directors and officers, their close family members or these associates or associates with these individuals are
also considered as related parties.

List of related parties:
Related parties Relationship
Mr Vu Duong Hien Chairman of Board of Directors (Resigned on September 21, 2024) and
Deputy General Director (Resigned on August 01, 2024)
i hai i Resi t 21
Mr Vu Xuan Thuy Vice Chairman of Board of Directors (Resigned on September 21,
2024)
Mr Doan Duc Luyen Member of the Board of Directors (Resigned on September 21, 2024)
: General Director (Resigned from June 26, 2025) cum Director of Ho
Ms Nguyen Thi Nguyet Chi Minh branch
Ms Vu Thi Thanh Nga Chief Accountant
Ms Le Mai Anh Head of Board of Supervisors (Resigned on April 27, 2024)

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 46
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HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B 09a - CTCK

Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Interim Financial Statements
Gia Vien Ward, Hai Phong City from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

E.6.32.3 Related parties information (Continued)

Related parties Relationship

Ms Khoa Thi Thanh Member of Board of Supervisors (4ssigned from April 27, 2024 and

Huyen resigned from September 21, 2024)

Ms Nguyen Thi My Head of Board of Supervisors (Assigned from May 02, 2024 and

Trang appointed from September 21, 2024)

Ms Doan Thi Thuy Member of Board of Supervisors (Assigned from September 21, 2024)
-- Authorized person to disclose information (Appointed from October
15, 2024)

Mr Pham Cong Ngu Human Resources Director - Authorized Person to Disclose
Information (Resigned from October 15, 2024)

Ms Luong Thi Mai Phuong Director of Hanoi Branch

Mr Vu Xuan Cuong Son of Mr Vu Duong Hien

Mr Ninh Le Son Hai Chairman of the Board of Directors (Appointed on September 21, 2024

and resigned on June 26, 2025) cum Deputy General Director
(Appointed on January 24, 2025 and resigned on June 26, 2025) cum
Acting General Director (Appointed on June 26, 2025)

Mr Chu Viet Ha Member of the Board of Directors (Appointed on September 21, 2024
and resigned on June 26, 2025)

Ms Ly Thi Thu Ha Member of the Board of Directors (Appointed on September 21, 2024
and resigned on June 26, 2025)

Mr Le Ngoc Hai Member of the Board of Directors (Appointed on September 21, 2024
and resigned on June 26, 2025)

Ms Nguyen Thi Mai Member of the Board of Directors (Appointed on September 21, 2024
and resigned on June 26, 2025)

Mr Pham Minh Hieu Head of the Board of Supervisors (Appointed on September 21, 2024
and resigned on June 26, 2025)

Mr Nguyen Trung Kien Member of the Board of Supervisors (dppointed on September 21,
2024 and resigned on June 26, 2025)

Mr Le Tuan Member of the Board of Supervisors (Appointed on September 21,
2024 and resigned on June 26, 2025)

Mr Dao Le Huy Chairman of the Board of Directors (Appointed on June 26, 2025)

Ms Ngo Thi Song Ngan Member of the Board of Directors (Appointed on June 26, 2025)

Mr Nguyen Tuan Anh Member of the Board of Directors (Appointed on June 26, 2025)

Transactions with related parties

Income of key management personnel

Full name of related ~ Income Transaction value

party Current period Previous period
Mr Vu Duong Hien Salary, bonuses, remuneration - 553,174,025
Mr Vu Xuan Thuy Remuneration - 46,550,000
Mr Doan Duc Luyen Salary, bonuses, remuneration - 369,936,727
Ms Nguyen Thi Nguyet  Salary, bonuses, remuneration 329,420,908 383,130,000
Ms Vu Thi Thanh Nga  Salary, bonuses, remuneration 241,830,000 276,433,001
Ms Le Mai Anh Salary, bonuses, remuneration - 165,188,452
Ms Nguyen Thi My  Remuneration - 40,000,000
Ms Doan Thi Thuy Salary, bonuses, remuneration 154,770,000 172,709,409

These notes form an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Financial Statements 47

=\

NG AW



HAI PHONG SECURITIES JOINT STOCK COMPANY B 09a - CTCK
Address: No. 7, Lot 28A Le Hong Phong Street, Interim Financial Statements
Gia Vien Ward, Hai Phong City from January 01, 2025 to June 30, 2025

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Full name of related Income Transaction value

party Current period Previous period
Ms Khoa Thi Thanh  Remuneration - 10,350,000
Mr Pham Cong Ngu Salary, bonuses - 244,200,182
Ms. Luong Thi Mai Phuor Salary, bonuses 203,740,000 179,370,928
Mr. Ninh Le Son Hai Salary, bonuses, remuneration 263,275,000 -
Mr. Chu Viet Ha Remuneration 47,495,455 -
Ms. Ly Thi Thu Ha Salary, bonuses, remuneration 311,325,455 -
Mr. Le Ngoc Hai Remuneration 47,495,455 -
Ms. Nguyen Thi Mai Salary, bonuses, remuneration 248,982,728 -
Mr. Pham Minh Hieu Remuneration 29,700,000 -
Mr. Nguyen Trung Kien Remuneration 29,700,000 -
Mr. Le Tuan Remuneration 29,700,000 -
Mr. Dao Le Huy Salary, bonuses, remuneration - -
Ms. Ngo Thi Song  Salary, bonuses, remuneration 69,893,636 -

Mr. Nguyen Tuan Anh  Salary, bonuses, remuneration - -

Other transactions with related parties

During the fiscal period from January 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025, there were no other transactions with related
parties.

Balance with related parties
As at June 30, 2025 there was no balance with related parties.

E.6.32.4 Comparative

Comparative figures are figures on the Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024 and
the Financial Statements for 6-month period ended June 30, 2024 audited and reviewed by BDO Audit Services
Company Limited.

Hai Phong, July 28, 2025
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